

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Article I. Name

The name of this organization has been declared to be the McKendree University Inter-Greek Council (hereafter known as IGC).

#### Section 1.01 Purpose

The Inter-Greek Council shall be the governing body of all social sororities and fraternities at McKendree University. The Inter-Greek Council acts as a means of communication between individual organizations, advisors, faculty and staff. Our purpose is to promote unity among the organizations, provide information, encourage involvement in campus and the greater community, and uphold the values of the Fraternity and Sorority Life.

### Article II. Laws Governing

The laws governing for the Inter-Greek Council shall be its Constitution and Bylaws, policies of the Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life, McKendree University's student handbook, and local, state, and federal laws. IGC reserves the right to recommend the removal of the Registered Student Organization status of any member organization not in compliance with these rules and regulations.

### Article III. Council Membership

IGC shall be composed of all social sororities and fraternities at McKendree University. Membership and participation shall be free from discrimination based on race, color, religion, national origin, ancestry, age, gender, sexual orientation, or disability. Council will be defined as: President, Vice President, Treasurer/Secretary and council member representatives.

#### Section 3.01 Full Council Members

The current lists of Full Council Members comprising the council of IGC are:

1. Alpha Delta Gamma Fraternity (Alpha Eta Chapter)
2. Kappa Lambda Iota Sorority (Alpha Chapter)
3. Kappa Sigma Tau Sorority (Alpha Chapter)
4. Sigma Sigma Sigma Sorority (Theta Gamma Chapter)
5. Phi Beta Sigma Fraternity (Gamma Rho Eta)

#### Section 3.02 Associate Council Members

The current lists of Associate Council Members comprising the council of IGC are:

1. N/A

#### Section 3.03 Full Council Member Status Requirements

The requirements to obtain full member status within IGC are:

1. Recognized as a social fraternity or sorority by the Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life
2. Recognized RSO by policies of the Office of Campus Activities
3. Pay Dues as defined in Article IV, Section 3.11
4. Chapter Membership GPA Average has maintained a minimum cumulative 2.5 GPA
5. Turning in official rosters to the Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life
6. Compliance with ICG Risk management policy, IGC Constitution, and policies as mandated by McKendree University

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Section 3.04 Full Council Member Status Responsibilities

Upon gaining full council member status, chapters will send representatives to all IGC meetings and functions. These representatives will act on behalf of their chapter.

### Section 3.05 Associate Council Member

Any colonies of a social fraternity or sorority recognized by the Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life will be granted Associate council member status. Associate council members must also be recognized as an RSO by policies of the Office of Campus Activities. Associate council member chapters must also demonstrate intentions to move to Full Council Member status.

### Section 3.06 Associate Council Member Status Requirements Regulations

Associate council member chapters will have the regulations associated with their membership:

1. Pay dues as defined in Article IV, Section 3.11.
2. Individuals in an Associate Council Member cannot hold an executive board position.
3. Representatives cannot vote, but are still required to come to all IGC meetings.

### Section 3.07 Representatives

Each council member will provide three representatives to attend IGC functions. Two representatives will be considered primary representatives and are expected to attend IGC functions on a regular basis. The third representative shall be an alternate. The Alternate Representative will attend only when one of the primary representatives is unable to attend IGC functions. Each full member will receive two voting ballots, which will be given individually to representatives in attendance.

### Section 3.08 Selection of Representative

Representatives are to be appointed by their respective full or associate council member organizations to serve for one calendar year term.

### Section 3.09 Representative Vacancies

If an IGC representative vacates their position, it is the duty of the council member to fill the open position at their discretion. The new representative must meet all eligibility requirements set forth by IGC. Notification of the new representative must be sent via email to the IGC council within 24 hours of the position being filled.

### Section 3.10 Representatives Responsibilities

All members' representatives are expected to fulfill the following responsibilities to the best of their ability:

1. Report all business of IGC to their respective chapters on a weekly basis.
2. Report pertinent business of their chapter to IGC.
3. Cast the appropriate vote on behalf of their chapter.

### Section 3.11 Membership Dues

Each full council member chapter shall pay \$10 per active and new member, or \$100 if total active and new members fall below ten. Associate council member chapters will be required to pay half-dues of \$5.00 per active and new member, or \$50 if the total active and new members fall below ten. This due shall be paid to the IGC account every semester, and a receipt of the transaction shall be given to the Treasurer by a date determined by Council each semester. Dues will be determined based on chapter roster.

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Article IV. Council Member Association

Any council member wanting to maintain membership in IGC must comply with the following definitions of chapter membership and submit chapter rosters by October 1<sup>st</sup> in the fall semester and by March 1<sup>st</sup> to the secretary.

#### Section 4.01 New Member

1. Full-time undergraduate student of McKendree University
2. Minimum cumulative GPA set forth by respective chapter
3. In good standing as defined by member chapter
4. Initiated before the end of the semester of accepting a bid

#### Section 4.02 Active Member

1. Full-time undergraduate student of McKendree University
2. Maintain a minimum cumulative GPA set forth by respective member organization
3. In good standing as defined by member organization
4. Activated/Initiated member as defined by the organization

#### Section 4.03 Inactive Member

1. Non-due paying member
2. Ineligible to participate in any Fraternity and Sorority Life or respective member organization events
3. Maintains inactive status on member organization roster
4. Not included in member organization grade report

### Article V. Officers

#### Section 5.01 Executive Board

The executive board of IGC shall be comprised of the following positions:

1. President
2. Vice President
3. Treasurer
4. Secretary
5. Public Relations

#### Section 5.02 Standards of Eligibility

All candidates nominated for executive board positions on IGC must meet the qualifications of active membership for their respective fraternities and sororities. Additionally, any person nominated for an executive board must comply with the following standards:

1. No person shall hold the presidency or vice-presidency of their fraternity/sorority while on IGC executive board.
2. IGC Executive Board members must maintain a 2.5 cumulative GPA.
3. Members must remain in good standing with the university.
4. If a member fails to meet these qualifications, they must automatically vacate their position.

#### Section 5.03 Term

Terms for the executive board shall be one calendar year; beginning in the spring semester and ending in the fall semester of the next academic school year.

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Section 5.04 Committees

The Vice President has the power to assemble and appoint a chair for committee for the creation of programs, social events, and other activities on the behalf of IGC.

### Section 5.05 Nominations

Nominations for the elected officers shall be made in the presence of quorum a week before the elections shall take place. One cannot nominate himself or herself for a position.

### Section 5.06 Elections

Elections shall be held annually at the end of the fall semester. If needed, a special election can be called in either the spring or fall to fill a vacated spot. There can be no more than two members from any fraternity or sorority on the executive board. Elections on the offices will take place in the following order:

1. President
2. Vice President
3. Treasurer
4. Secretary
5. Public Relations

### Section 5.07 Election Process

Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members. The president of IGC will abstain from voting, and facilitate the election process.

1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.
2. Brief discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.
3. A paper ballot, given to IGC representatives only, will then be taken and tallied by the president of IGC and the advisor(s) of IGC.
4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.
5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.
6. Another vote shall be cast, only by IGC representatives, to determine winner (two-thirds required).
7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority. If a simple majority cannot be reached, the president may cast the tie breaking vote.
8. After two members from any fraternity or sorority are elected into an executive board position, no one else from that organization will be on the ballot for the duration of the election process.
9. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...
10. Once a person has been elected into a position, the current executive board will meet to discuss the elected officer. The executive board can veto the vote with a unanimous decision. If this occurs, another vote will be taken for that position with the vetoed person removed from the ballot. This person can still waterfall to another position.

### Section 5.08 Removal of Officers

When an Executive Board member or IGC representative violates any rules, regulations, or outlined procedures, an impeachment motion can be brought forth. The impeachment process for an elected officer is as follows:

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

1. A charge must be reported to the president.
2. The accused must be notified at least twenty-four hours in advance to appear before the IGC Judicial Board.
3. The accused shall have their case evaluated by the Judicial Board, and be given a chance to speak on their behalf.
4. The Judicial Board shall vote whether or not to impeach an accused elected member. There must be a majority vote in order for impeachment to pass.

### Section 5.09 Vacancies

Whenever an executive board position becomes vacant mid-year, the following process should take place.

1. The officer below the vacant position has the opportunity to step into the vacant position. They must announce this transition at the next general and executive board meeting. The general assembly can motion for a vote of no confidence. If the vote receives 30% in favor of “No Confidence”, the vote passes and the officer cannot simply fill the new position. The hierarchy of officers will be:
  - a. President
  - b. Vice President
  - c. Treasurer
  - d. Secretary
  - e. Public Relations
  - f. Longest Tenured IGC representative
2. If the officer below the vacant position does not want to step up, or has a vote of “No Confidence” against them, the council will utilize a general nomination and election process as outlined in section 5.06

## Article VI. Duties of Officers

### Section 6.01 President

1. Shall preside and moderate all IGC meetings.
2. In case of ties in voting, shall cast the tiebreaker vote.
3. Oversee the actions of all members of IGC.
4. Serve as the official spokesperson of the council on all matters.
5. Coordinate an officer transition program to provide for the adequate training of all chapter and IGC officers.

### Section 6.02 Vice President

1. Shall preside over all IGC Executive Board meetings.
2. Fulfill the duties of the President in his or her absence.
3. Oversee any committees that may be established.

### Section 6.03 Treasurer

1. Serve as the financial steward of the council
2. To hold fundraisers when deemed necessary by the council.
3. Submit annual budgets request and appeal when necessary to the Student Government Association.

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Section 6.04 Secretary

1. Record and publish the minutes of all proceedings of the council, including regular and executive meetings, as well as Judicial Hearings.
2. Publish a directory of all IGC officers and delegates.
3. To maintain and publish the resource files compiled by the other officers for use by the member chapters.

### Section 6.05 Public Relations

1. Preside over all social media, fliers, public information
2. Coordinate with appropriate members to inform general public of IGC events
3. Gain approval of all fliers or documents
4. Efficiently promote IGC events and inform the public in proper manner

## **Article VII. IGC Advisor**

### Section 7.01 Definition

There shall be one IGC Advisor who will serve as a mentor to IGC.

### Section 7.02 Selection

The IGC Advisor shall be the Coordinator for Fraternity and Sorority Life or their designee.

## **Article VIII. Judicial Board**

### Section 8.01 Members

The Judicial Board shall consist of the three executive positions. If an Executive member is being impeached, then the longest active chapter representative shall sit on the board.

### Section 8.02 Job

The Judicial board will hold a hearing in the event that a policy of IGC or a policy from the Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life is broken by a Greek affiliated student.

## **Article IX. Meetings**

### Section 9.01 Council Meeting

IGC shall meet weekly on a day and time that is decided upon by the council.

1. IGC council meetings are open to any active and new member(s) of the respective Greek organizations.
2. Active and new members who choose to sit in on IGC council meetings do not have the right to vote or make motions on the floor.
3. Robert's Rules of Order- Newly Revised Edition shall be followed in these meetings.

### Section 9.02 Executive Board

The executive board shall meet weekly in a closed meeting on a day and time that is decided upon by the executive board.

### Section 9.03 Quorum

Quorum is established as two-thirds (2/3) of the IGC council. Quorum must be present at IGC meetings in order for meetings to take place.

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Article X. Finances

#### Section 10.01 Fines

The IGC Judicial Board may use fines as sanctions in conjunction with stipulations in both the IGC Constitution and By Laws.

#### Section 10.02 Agency

The council may not enter into contractual agreements that bind the council without the consent of the advisor and/or the Coordinator for Fraternity and Sorority Life.

### Article XI. Compliance

#### Section 11.01 Risk Management Policy

All fraternities and sororities of McKendree University must comply with the Risk Management Policy, in accordance with IGC and McKendree University Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life.

#### Section 11.02 Non-Compliance

Any organization who does not comply with the stated Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life Risk Management Policy will succumb to an Office of Fraternity and Sorority Life or IGC investigation, and a possible revoking of their charter or recognition as a member organization, in accordance with Article III.

### Article XII. Recruitment and Bids

#### Section 12.01 Recruitment Process

Recruitment process will always conclude with a “Bid Day” as described in Section 12.02. The length of time for recruitment process will be determined by IGC the semester before the start of the academic term.

#### Section 12.02 Bid Day and Bid Freeze

Bids will be given to potential new members at the conclusion of each recruitment process. There will be a freeze at the beginning of each semester. A bid freeze is the time when sororities and fraternities cannot hand out bids to potential new members before a specified date. The bid freeze for each semester will be as follows:

1. Fall: 2 weeks and 4 days after Labor Day
2. Spring: 2 weeks and 4 days after Martin Luther King Day

#### Section 12.03 Informal Recruitment

All fraternities and Sororities can host recruitment events at any time during the semester provided they have received the appropriate approval for the events.

### Article XIII. Amendments

This constitution may be amended at any regular meeting of the council by a two-thirds approval vote; provided notice of the proposed amendment shall be given one week prior to the vote.

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

### Article XIV. Sequence of Amendments

Article III, Section 3.11	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 3.11 Membership Dues</b>            Each full council member chapter shall pay \$5 per active member, or \$50 if total active members fall below ten.            Associate council member chapters will be required to pay half-dues of \$2.50 per active member, or \$25 if the total active members fall below ten. This due shall be paid to the IGC account every semester, and a receipt of the transaction shall be given to the Treasurer/Secretary by a date determined by Council each semester. Dues will be determined based on chapter roster.</p>	<p><b>Section 3.11 Membership Dues</b>            Each full council member chapter shall pay \$5 per active and new member, or \$50 if total active and new members fall below ten. Associate council member chapters will be required to pay half-dues of \$2.50 per active and new member, or \$25 if the total active and new members fall below ten. This due shall be paid to the IGC account every semester, and a receipt of the transaction shall be given to the Treasurer by a date determined by Council each semester. Dues will be determined based on chapter roster.</p>
<p>Rationale: This section did not include dues for new members. Amendment passed on: April 14, 2016</p>	

Article VI, Sections 6.03 & 6.04	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 6.03 Secretary/Treasurer</b></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Record and publish the minutes of all proceedings of the council, including regular and executive meetings, as well as Judicial Hearings.</li> <li>2. Publish a directory of all IGC officers and delegates.</li> <li>3. To maintain and publish the resource files compiled by the other officers for use by the member chapters.</li> <li>4. Serve as the financial steward of the council</li> <li>5. To hold fundraisers when deemed necessary by the council.</li> <li>6. Submit annual budgets request and appeal when necessary to the Student Government Association.</li> </ol>	<p><b>Section 6.03 Treasurer</b></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Serve as the financial steward of the council</li> <li>2. To hold fundraisers when deemed necessary by the council.</li> <li>3. Submit annual budgets request and appeal when necessary to the Student Government Association.</li> </ol> <p><b>Section 6.04 Secretary</b></p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Record and publish the minutes of all proceedings of the council, including regular and executive meetings, as well as Judicial Hearings.</li> <li>2. Publish a directory of all IGC officers and delegates.</li> <li>3. To maintain and publish the resource files compiled by the other officers for use by the member chapters.</li> </ol>
<p>Rationale: There has been a desire to increase leadership opportunities with IGC. Amendment passed on: April 14, 2016</p>	

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

<b>Article V, Sections 5.06 &amp; 5.07</b>	
<b>Previous</b>	<b>Current</b>
<p>Section 5.06 Elections</p> <p>Elections shall be held annually at the end of the fall semester. If needed, a special election can be called in either the spring or fall to fill a vacated spot. Elections on the offices will take place in the following order:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. President</li> <li>2. Vice President</li> <li>3. Secretary/Treasurer</li> </ol> <p>Section 5.07 Election Process</p> <p>Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.</li> <li>2. Discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>3. A paper ballot will then be taken.</li> <li>4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.</li> <li>5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>6. Another vote shall be cast to determine winner (two-thirds required).</li> <li>7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority.</li> <li>8. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...</li> </ol>	<p>Section 5.06 Elections</p> <p>Elections shall be held annually at the end of the fall semester. If needed, a special election can be called in either the spring or fall to fill a vacated spot. Elections on the offices will take place in the following order:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. President</li> <li>2. Vice President</li> <li>3. Treasurer</li> <li>4. Secretary</li> <li>5. Public Relations</li> </ol> <p>Section 5.07 Election Process</p> <p>Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members. The president of IGC will abstain from voting, and facilitate the election process.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.</li> <li>2. Brief discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>3. A paper ballot will then be taken and tallied by the president of IGC and the advisor(s) of IGC.</li> <li>4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.</li> <li>5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>6. Another vote shall be cast to determine winner (two-thirds required).</li> <li>7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority. If a simple majority cannot be reached, the president may cast the tie breaking vote.</li> <li>8. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...</li> </ol>
<p>Rationale: With the desire for more leadership opportunities, more specifics on elections were needed. Amendment passed on: April 14, 2016</p>	

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

<b>Article V, Section 5.09</b>	
Previous	Current
	<p>Section 5.09 Vacancies</p> <p>Whenever an executive board position becomes vacant mid-year, the following process should take place.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>3. The officer below the vacant position has the opportunity to step into the vacant position. They must announce this transition at the next general and executive board meeting. The general assembly can motion for a vote of no confidence. If the vote receives 30% in favor of “No Confidence”, the vote passes and the officer cannot simply fill the new position.               <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. The hierarchy of officers will be:                   <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>i. President</li> <li>ii. Vice President</li> <li>iii. Treasurer</li> <li>iv. Secretary</li> <li>v. Public Relations</li> <li>vi. Longest Tenured IGC representative</li> </ol> </li> </ol> </li> <li>4. If the officer below the vacant position does not want to step up, or has a vote of “No Confidence” against them, the council will utilize a general nomination and election process as outlined in section 5.06</li> </ol>
<p>Rationale: There was a need for a section on how to handle executive board vacancies. Amendment passed on: April 14, 2016</p>	

<b>Article V, Section 5.09</b>	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 5.06 Elections</b></p> <p>Elections shall be held annually at the end of the fall semester. If needed, a special election can be called in either the spring or fall to fill a vacated spot. Elections on the offices will take place in the following order:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. President</li> <li>2. Vice President</li> <li>3. Treasurer</li> <li>4. Secretary</li> <li>5. Public Relations</li> </ol>	<p><b>Section 5.06 Elections</b></p> <p>Elections shall be held annually at the end of the fall semester. If needed, a special election can be called in either the spring or fall to fill a vacated spot. There can be no more than two members from any fraternity or sorority on the executive board. Elections on the offices will take place in the following order:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. President</li> <li>2. Vice President</li> <li>3. Treasurer</li> <li>4. Secretary</li> <li>5. Public Relations</li> </ol>
<p>Rationale: Because the executive board featured three members from one sorority, there was a need to create more of a diverse group from each sorority and fraternity. Amendment passed on: September 28, 2016</p>	

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

<b>Article V, Section 5.07</b>	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 5.07 Election Process</b> Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members. The president of IGC will abstain from voting, and facilitate the election process.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.</li> <li>2. Brief discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>3. A paper ballot will then be taken and tallied by the president of IGC and the advisor(s) of IGC.</li> <li>4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.</li> <li>5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>6. Another vote shall be cast to determine winner (two-thirds required).</li> <li>7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority. If a simple majority cannot be reached, the president may cast the tie breaking vote.</li> <li>8. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...</li> </ol>	<p><b>Section 5.07 Election Process</b> Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members. The president of IGC will abstain from voting, and facilitate the election process.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.</li> <li>2. Brief discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>3. A paper ballot will then be taken and tallied by the president of IGC and the advisor(s) of IGC.</li> <li>4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.</li> <li>5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>6. Another vote shall be cast to determine winner (two-thirds required).</li> <li>7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority. If a simple majority cannot be reached, the president may cast the tie breaking vote.</li> <li>8. After two members from any fraternity or sorority are elected into an executive board position, no one else from that organization will be on the ballot for the duration of the election process.</li> <li>9. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...</li> </ol>
<p>Rationale: Because the executive board featured three members from one sorority, there was a need to create more of a diverse group from each sorority and fraternity. Amendment passed on: September 28, 2016</p>	

<b>Article V, Section 5.07</b>	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 5.07 Election Process</b> Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members. The president of IGC will abstain from voting, and facilitate the election process.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.</li> <li>2. Brief discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>3. A paper ballot will then be taken and tallied by the president of IGC and the advisor(s) of IGC.</li> <li>4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.</li> <li>5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>6. Another vote shall be cast to determine winner (two-thirds required).</li> </ol>	<p><b>Section 5.07 Election Process</b> Officers of IGC must be elected by a simple majority of IGC members. The president of IGC will abstain from voting, and facilitate the election process.</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. Candidates will be given time to present a speech, and will speak in order of nomination.</li> <li>2. Brief discussion shall open, after all candidates have spoken, over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>3. A paper ballot, given to IGC representatives only, will then be taken and tallied by the president of IGC and the advisor(s) of IGC.</li> <li>4. IF a simple majority cannot be reached, the two candidates with highest vote recipients shall move on to final vote.</li> <li>5. Discussion shall open over which candidate is best suited.</li> <li>6. Another vote shall be cast, only by IGC</li> </ol>

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

<ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority. If a simple majority cannot be reached, the president may cast the tie breaking vote.</li> <li>8. After two members from any fraternity or sorority are elected into an executive board position, no one else from that organization will be on the ballot for the duration of the election process.</li> <li>9. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...</li> </ol>	<p>representatives, to determine winner (two-thirds required).</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>7. If needed, a motion can be made for a simple majority. If a simple majority cannot be reached, the president may cast the tie breaking vote.</li> <li>8. After two members from any fraternity or sorority are elected into an executive board position, no one else from that organization will be on the ballot for the duration of the election process.</li> <li>9. A waterfall system shall be in place for the election process. For example, if a candidate is not elected to the presidency, his or her name will immediately be placed on the ballot for vice president, etc...</li> <li>10. Once a person has been elected into a position, the current executive board will meet to discuss the elected officer. The executive board can veto the vote with a unanimous decision. If this occurs, another vote will be taken for that position with the vetoed person removed from the ballot. This person can still waterfall to another position.</li> </ol>
---	--

Rationale: Because the executive board featured three members from one sorority, there was a need to create more of a diverse group from each sorority and fraternity. Executive board voting also created a power struggle if one group had more executive board members than others. This helped fix that while also leaving some power with the executive board. Amendment passed on: November 16, 2016

<b>Article V, Section 5.02</b>	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 5.02 Standards of Eligibility</b> All candidates nominated for executive board positions on IGC must meet the qualifications of active membership for their respective fraternities and sororities. Additionally, any person nominated for an executive board must comply with the following standards:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. No person shall hold the presidency of their fraternity/sorority while holding the presidency of IGC.</li> <li>2. The candidate will not hold an executive board position within their fraternity/sorority while on IGC executive board.</li> <li>3. As pertaining to Section 5.02, subheading 2: Executive board will consist of the following positions:               <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. President</li> <li>b. Vice President</li> <li>c. Treasurer</li> </ol> </li> </ol>	<p><b>Section 5.02 Standards of Eligibility</b> All candidates nominated for executive board positions on IGC must meet the qualifications of active membership for their respective fraternities and sororities. Additionally, any person nominated for an executive board must comply with the following standards:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. No person shall hold the presidency or vice-presidency of their fraternity/sorority while on the IGC executive board.</li> <li>2. As pertaining to Section 5.02, subheading 2: Executive board will consist of the following positions:               <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. President</li> <li>b. Vice President</li> <li>c. Treasurer</li> <li>d. Recruitment</li> <li>e. New Member Educator</li> </ol> </li> <li>3. If a member fails to meet these qualifications, they must automatically vacate</li> </ol>

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

<ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>d. Recruitment</li> <li>e. New Member Educator</li> </ul> <p>4. If a member fails to meet these qualifications, they must automatically vacate their position.</p>	<p>their position.</p>
<p>Rationale: Members felt that smaller organizations did not have as much of a chance to have a member on the executive board as well as have two representatives if no one from their executive board could run. Amendment passed on: February 21, 2018</p>	

<b>Article V, Section 5.02</b>	
Previous	Current
<p><b>Section 5.02 Standards of Eligibility</b>            All candidates nominated for executive board positions on IGC must meet the qualifications of active membership for their respective fraternities and sororities. Additionally, any person nominated for an executive board must comply with the following standards:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. No person shall hold the presidency or vice-presidency of their fraternity/sorority while on the IGC executive board.</li> <li>2. As pertaining to Section 5.02, subheading 2: Executive board will consist of the following positions:               <ul style="list-style-type: none"> <li>a. President</li> <li>b. Vice President</li> <li>c. Treasurer</li> <li>d. Recruitment</li> <li>e. New Member Educator</li> </ul> </li> <li>3. If a member fails to meet these qualifications, they must automatically vacate their position.</li> </ol>	<p><b>Section 5.02 Standards of Eligibility</b>            All candidates nominated for executive board positions on IGC must meet the qualifications of active membership for their respective fraternities and sororities. Additionally, any person nominated for an executive board must comply with the following standards:</p> <ol style="list-style-type: none"> <li>1. No person shall hold the presidency or vice-presidency of their fraternity/sorority while on the IGC executive board.</li> <li>2. IGC Executive Board members must maintain a 2.5 cumulative GPA.</li> <li>3. Members must remain in good standing with the university.</li> <li>4. If a member fails to meet these qualifications, they must automatically vacate their position.</li> </ol>
<p>Rationale: After amendments to this section on February 21, 2018, listing number 2 no longer made sense. GPA and good standing were added as important pieces for IGC Executive Board. Amendment passed on: February 28, 2018</p>	

# Inter-Greek Council Constitution and Bylaws

## McKendree University

<b>Article III, Section 3.11</b>	
Previous	Current
<p>Section 3.11 Membership Dues</p> <p>Each full council member chapter shall pay \$5 per active and new member, or \$50 if total active and new members fall below ten. Associate council member chapters will be required to pay half-dues of \$2.50 per active and new member, or \$25 if the total active and new members fall below ten. This due shall be paid to the IGC account every semester, and a receipt of the transaction shall be given to the Treasurer by a date determined by Council each semester. Dues will be determined based on chapter roster.</p>	<p>Section 3.11 Membership Dues</p> <p>Each full council member chapter shall pay \$10 per active and new member, or \$100 if total active and new members fall below ten. Associate council member chapters will be required to pay half-dues of \$5.00 per active and new member, or \$50 if the total active and new members fall below ten. This due shall be paid to the IGC account every semester, and a receipt of the transaction shall be given to the Treasurer by a date determined by Council each semester. Dues will be determined based on chapter roster.</p>
<p>Rationale: IGC needed additional funds to support its initiatives. Amendment passed on: February 2, 2019</p>	